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Clarifications 2. 
Request for tender – LMS
	Reference
	QUESTION
	CLARIFICATION

	1
	Identity and SSO responsibilities
In relation to the SSO implementation and the future migration from Azure AD B2C to Microsoft Entra External ID, could you please clarify the expected division of responsibilities between ACARA and the LMS vendor (e.g. identity provider configuration, authentication flows, attribute mapping, testing, and cutover activities)?
Additionally, could you please confirm the level of vendor involvement anticipated in the Entra migration (e.g. configuration support within the LMS only, identity architecture guidance, or broader migration assistance)?

	At a high level, the LMS vendor will be responsible for configuring and supporting the LMS integration with our & external Identity Provider for federated and non-federated SSO, ensuring the authentication process works correctly, validating user data mapping, completing required testing, resolving LMS-related issues, and providing support during go-live to ensure a smooth transition.

For migration to Microsoft Entra External ID, the LMS vendor will be responsible for updating the LMS configuration to align with the new identity platform, ensuring all integration settings are correctly reconfigured, validating user attributes and authentication behaviour, supporting end-to-end and regression testing, and providing technical guidance to ensure a smooth transition without impacting user access.

The migration to Microsoft Entra External ID is not a strict requirement for this June 2026 deliverable; however, we may look to upgrade to Microsoft Entra External ID at a later time if Microsoft withdraws or significantly changes support for Azure AD B2C.


	2
	User provisioning approach
Could you please confirm ACARA’s anticipated user provisioning model (e.g. JIT provisioning via SSO, API integration with an upstream system, or periodic bulk uploads), and whether the LMS vendor is expected to support or develop any provisioning workflows as part of implementation?
Are there any upstream systems (e.g. CMS, HR platforms, teacher registries, or other identity sources) from which user attributes or provisioning data will originate, and should vendors anticipate integration with these systems?

	The vendor to confirm and support the user provisioning model, whether this is Just-In-Time (JIT) provisioning or API-based integration with periodic bulk user uploads. The vendor should be prepared to configure and, where necessary, develop or support the required provisioning workflows within the LMS as part of the implementation.

We will require guidance and best practice recommendations from the vendor throughout the implementation.
 
Currently, we're using the Microsoft Community Training Platform (MCP) as our LMS. As part of the transition to the new LMS, bulk user migration will be required, and the vendor should support the import and validation of existing user accounts into the new system.

	3
	Testing, environments, and coordination
Given that the Azure AD B2C solution is currently under development, could you please outline the anticipated testing and coordination approach for SSO integration, including availability of sandbox environments, joint testing cycles, and expected vendor participation in identity-related testing?	Comment by Ramadurai, Jay: Hi @Kumar, Navneet , Good morning. Could you please add your comments for this section & will've  discussion if required., Thanks.	Comment by Kumar, Navneet: Thanks @Ramadurai, Jay updated. Kindly review.

	Testing will validate post-implementation access workflows, including request, grant, and denial processes for both new and existing users. Functional verification in the SIT environment will cover MFA generation, profile/password management, and role-based access control. The vendor team should provide real-time backend support, configuration tuning and share back-end results from data exchange. Testing to then progress to User testing before the final integration sign-off. Testing will also ensure that the system delivers an optimum mobile experience.

	4
	Integrations and data exchange
Beyond identity integration, could you please confirm whether ACARA anticipates any additional integrations or data exchange requirements, for example:
· Integration with other learning content providers or catalogues (e.g. external course libraries)
· Reporting or analytics data being pushed from the LMS into other systems
· Ongoing data feeds between the LMS and the Australian Curriculum website or Adobe ecosystem
If so, any high-level overview of these expectations would be helpful.

	No integration with other learning content providers or catalogues is planned at this time. 
Reporting and analytics: it would be preferrable if reporting and analytics could integrate with Adobe analytics


	5
	Migration scope (users, learning data, and content)
For the migration of existing users and learning data from the current platform, could you please clarify:
· Whether the LMS vendor is expected to lead or support identity reconciliation (e.g. UID alignment and account linking with Azure AD B2C)	Comment by Byrne, Elaine: @Ramadurai, Jay  @Katam, Naresh  not sure what the expectations are in regards to the first bullet point. Can you advise?	Comment by Ramadurai, Jay: Hi @Byrne, Elaine , We need vendor support and guidance on this.
· The anticipated scope of learning data migration (e.g. enrolments, completion records, certificates, reporting history)
· Whether existing course content is expected to be migrated, recreated, or selectively re-authored as part of the implementation

	
As we may migrate our Azure AD B2C instance to Microsoft Entra External ID in future,  we would expect the successful vendor to be able to provide guidance on how to configure their LMS product to Microsoft Entra External ID in the future. Migration will include learner account and course information, such as courses completed. Reporting can be a point-in-time export and archive from the existing system and reporting can start new in the current system. 	Comment by Byrne, Elaine: @Ramadurai, Jay  just need to recheck this one now that we have said Entra ID is out of scope in Qs 1
Current course content is low – approx. 35 courses. It is expected that these will be re-uploaded (scorm files and videos) as-is to the new system, with accompanying text info. 


We are currently using the Microsoft Community platform as our Learning Management System (LMS). The migration approach, effort, timelines, and associated costs will largely depend on the target vendor LMS platform. 
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